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The Zion Lodge Historic District of Zion National Park is located on the north fork
of the Virgin River in Zion Canyon. The district is approximately four miles north
of the south entrance of the park. The perpendicular walls of the marrow canyon
serve as a backdrop for the Zion Lodge complex.

Historically, the district was dominated by the Zion Lodge and consisted of the
standard cabins, the female dormitory, the boys' dormitory, several linen cabins,
comfort station, and across the road, a swimming pool and bathhouse.

The rustic style lodge designed by Gilbert Stanley Underwood, was a frame and native
stone, two story building which followed the contour of the mountains behind the
structure. The original lodge burned in January 1966, and was replaced with a
prefabricated building utilizing the original foundation. The new lodge lacks the
rustic qualities of the original lodge and is not a historic structure. The
bathhouse, also designed by Gilbert Stanley Underwood, was a "studs out" frame,
one-story building with native stone corner piers in a modified L-plan flanking

the swimming pool. This complex was removed in 1976.

The following buildings contribute to the historic district: male dormitory,
female dormitory, 10 deluxe duplex cabins, 5 deluxe quadraplex cabins, linen and
chemical cart building, linen cabin, comfort station, and 88 standard cabins. The
condition of the 10 deluxe duplex, 5 deluxe quadraplex cabins, the male dormitory,
and the female dormitory is fair, they are on their original sites, their config~
uration is unaltered and they possess architectural integrity and historical sig-
nificance. The linen and chemical cart building, linen cabin, comfort station,

and the 88 standard cabins are on their original sites, they have been altered, and

are in deteriorated condition. They possess architectural and historical signifi-
cance.

The description of the contributing buildings is as follows:

Male Dormitory. Built in 1937 by the Utah Parks Company, the rectangular plan
building is approximately 36' x 112'. The one-story building
has 21 rooms and a basement. 7The "studs out' frame building
has horizontal wood siding and is placed on a native stone
foundation. The wood shingled hip roof has exposed log rafter
ends. The gabled roof covering the porch on the front elevation
has large log rafters and beams. The porch has log railings and
bannisters. Massive native stone piers support the poirch roof.

Female Dormitory. Built in 1927 by the Utah Parks Company, the rectangular plan
building is approximately 36' - 69'. The two-story building
has 24 rooms and a 256 sq. ft. basement. The "studs out" frame
building has horizontal shiplap wood siding. The building, on
a raised native stone foundation, has a wood shingled hip roof.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ihe Zion Lodge Historic District is significant for its historic association with the
development of the "Rustic Style" architecture in the National Park Service during the
1920's. The complex was designed by one of the leaders of "Rustic Style' architecture,
Gilbert Stanley Underwood. In 1919, the Mukuntuweap National Monument was enlarged
and the name changed to Zion National Park. Previous to gaining park status, accom-
modations for tourists were provided by Wylie Camping Company. The Wylie Camps,
popular in other western national parks, gave the tourists a "camping experience”
complete with tent-style living. The Union Pacific Railroad secured the concessions
contract for Zion National Park and formed the Utah Parks Company to plan, build, and
maintain the concession developments. The Union Pacific Company retained Gilbert
Stanley Underwood to design the Zion Lodge Complex. Underwood is credited with the
design of Timberline Lodge on Mount Hood, the Ahwahnee Hotel in Yosemite, the Grand
Teton Lodge, Wyoming, the Bryce Canyon Lodge, and the Williamsburg Lodge in Williamsburg,
Virginia.

Between 1900 - 1940, the use of "Rustic Style" architecture was popular in the western
national parks. The style was characterized by :he use of narive wateirials to blend
with the rugged landscapes, anc the careful use of scale and design to make the
building compatible witk the natural enviromment. The "Rustic Style' of architecture
of Gilbert Stanley Underwood is one of the most important and lasting contributions

of the Utah Parks Company to Zion National Park. The '"Rustic Style" of Underwood
served as a model for the later construction in the park, particularly during the New
Deal of the 1930's. The Male Dormitory in the Zion Lodge Complex is an example of
Underwood's style being followed.

The original Zion Lodge Complex consisted of the Zion Lodge, the Bathhouse and Swimming
Pool, the Female Dormitory, Comfort Station, Linen Cabins, Deluxe Cabins, and the
Standard Cabins. The original Zion Lodge burned in 1966 and was replaced in 1966 by a
prefabricated building placed on the original lodge's foundation. The Bathhouse and
Swimming Pool were removed in 1976. The Standard Cabins were the first attempt by the
Utah Parks Company for accommodations in the lodge complex and were augmented by the
Deluxe Cabins over the following four years. The Standard Cabins were designed for a
20 year structural life.

In 1937, the Male Dormitory was built following the design set by Gilbert Stanley
Underwood in the previous decade. The "Rustic Style" architecture of Gilbert Stanley
Underwood as exemplified by the Zion Lodge cowplex can also be seen at Bryce Canyon
National Park.
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10 Deluxe Duplex Cabins.

5 Deluxe Quadraplex Cabins.

Linen and Chemical Cart Bld.

Linen Cabin.

Comfort Station.

Standard Cabins.

(Also known as Western) The 10 duplex cabins were built
by the Utah Parks Company in 1927. The rectangular plan
buildings are approximately 40' x 16%' with each unit of
the duplex having a 14' x 16' living room with a native
stone corner fireplace and a 7%' x 5%' bathroom. The
"studs out" buildings on native stone foundations have
horizontal wood 1" x 6" shiplap siding and wood shingled
gable roofs. The covered porches have square section
balustrades, posts and railings. The massive native stone
exterior corner chimneys are prominent architectural
features. Most of the 10 cabins have open truss ceilings.

(Also known as Western) The 5 four-room cabins were built
in 1929 by the Utah Parks Company. The rectangular plan
buildings are approximately 62' x 35' with the porches
being approximately 6' x 9'. Each unit contains a living
room with native stone fireplace and a bathroom. The
“"studs out" frame constructed buildings have horizontal
wood 1" x 6" shiplap siding and wood shingled gable roofs.
The massive native stone exterior corner chimmneys are
prominant architectural features.

Built in 1925 and remodeled in 1929 by the Utah Parks
Company, the one-story 396 sq. ft. building is a "studs
out’' frame constructed building with wood shingled gable
roof.

Built in 1925 and remodeled in 1929 by the Utah Parks
Company, the one-story, two-room building apnroximately
26" x 12' is a "studs out” frame constructed building
with a wood shingled gable roof.

Built in 1926 by the Utah Parks Company, the one-story,
four-room building is a "studs out” frame building on a
stone foundation. The building is approximately

307 x 12%'.

(Also known as Pioneer and Frontier) The standard two-room
cabins were built in 1925 by the Utah Parks Companv for
rental units and employee quarters. The original portion
of *the buildings are approximately 26" x 13", "studs out"
frame structures with horizontal wood 1" x 6" shiplap
siding. The buildings. on native stone foundations, have
wood shin . lodgable roofs. Between 1941-1948 ) the cabins
were remodeled and an approximately 8 ft. square addition
was built to each building. The addition provided a bath-
room for each unit.
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The following non-contributing building is not architecturally or historically significant
but does infill the historic district:

The New Zion Lodge. Built in 1966, the prefabricated modern built building is placed
on the original foundation of the old Zion Lodge.

The survey of the Zion Lodge Historic District, Zion National Park was completed by
Lance Olivieri, a consultant on historic properties, and under the supervision of
Supervisory Historical Architect Rodd L. Wheaton during June 1976. Mr. Olivieri
used the criteria established by the National Register of Historic Places for his
evaluations.
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Despite the intrusion of the new Zion Lodge and the loss of architectural integrity
of the Standard Cabins, Linen Cabins, and Comfort Station; the 15 Deluxe Cabins, the
Female Dormitory, and the Male Dormitory retain the original fabric and character of

the "Rustic Style."
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